UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
WASHINGTON, D. C.

IN THE MATTER OF

£x]

K. 0. Manufacturing, Inc. Docket Number:
Springfield, Missouri : EPCRA-VII-89-T-611

Respondent :

Emergency Planning and Right to Know Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. § 11001
et seq. Sections 313 and 325, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023 and 11045.

1. Respondent is not liable for failure to file a reporting
form ("Form R") for 2-Butyoxyethanol, inasmuch as the regulation in
question, 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, did not give adequate notice that the
use of such chemical had to be reported pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §
372.30(a).

2. Where respondent’s construction of a regulation differs
from complainant’s, and does not render any portion of the
regulation superfluous or meaningless, respondent may not be held
liable for failing to know what construction the enforcing
authority places upon the regulation. This is particularly true
where, as here, the wording of the regulation on its face equally
if not more probably supports respondent’s construction over
complainant’s, and where respondent relied contemporaneously upon
its own interpretation.

Appearances:

Kent Johnson, Esquire, Assistant Regional Counsel, Office of
Regional Counsel, U. S. Environmental Protection Agency,
726 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101, for

complainant.

Michael K. Cully, Esquire, Lowther, Johnson, Joyner, Lowther,
Cully & Housley, 300 John Q. Hammons Parkway, Suite 800,
Springfield, Missouri 65806, for respondent.

BEFORE: J. F. Greene, Administrative Law Judge

Decided: February 28, 1993



DECISTON AND ORDER
GRANTING RESPONDENT'’S MOTION FOR "ACCELERATED DECISION"

and DENYING COMPLAINANT’S MOTION

This matter arises under 42 U.S.C. §11001 et seqg., the
Emergency Planning and Right to Know Act of 1986 ("the Act", or
"EPCRA"), and is an administrative action for the assessment of
civil penalties brought pursuant to Section 325 thereof, [42 U.S.C.
§11045], for violations of the Act and regulations promulgated at
40 C.F.R. Part 372 pursuant to authority.

Specifically, the complaint charges that respondent failed to
submit a toxic chemical release inventory form ("Form R") for 2-
Butyoxyethanol, a glycol ether compound utilized in its detergent
manufacturing business, to the Administrator of the U. S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and to the State of Kansas by
July 1, 1988, in wviolation of Section 313 of the Act (42 U. S.C.
§11023) and 40 C.F.R. §372.30(a).! Complainant proposes a civil

penalty of $5,000.00 for the alleged infraction.?

' 40 CFR §372.30(a) provides in pertinent part as follows:

For each toxic chemical known by the

owner or operator to be manufactured
(including imported), processed, or other-
wise used in excess of an applicable thresh-
old quantity in § 372.25 at its covered
facility described in § 372.22 for a cal-
endar year, the owner or operator must sub-
mit to EPA and to the State in which the
facility is located a completed EPA Form R

. in accordance with the instructions in
Subpart E.

? Complaint at 3.



In its answer to the complaint, respondent admitted that it
had not filed a Form R for 2-Butyoxyethanol by July 1, 1988; denied
that glycol ether compounds are toxic chemicals;?® and stated
raffirmatively . . . that it had no . . . duty or obligation to
submit a toxic chemical release inventory (Form R) for 2-
Butyoxyethanol to the Administrator of EPA and certainly had no
such duty with respect to the State of Kansas . . . . ".¢
Respondent pointed out that it "voluntarily did file" a Form R for
2-Butyoxyethanol '"once it was requested to do so."’ Respondent
further stated in its answer that it would contest the issue of
whether the failure to submit a Form R for 2-Butyoxyethanol by July
1, 1988, was a violation of Section 313 and 40 C.F.R. Part 372
because: (1) the "best data available to Respondent for the
reporting year 1987 indicated that filing was not required;" (2)
respondent’s supplier [Chem Tech Industries, Inc.] had advised that
filing was not required;" (3) EPA personnel and the hot-line
expressed confusion over whether 2-Butyoxyethanol was required to
be reported for 1987; (4) the EPA instruction booklet was
ambiguous, confusing, misleading, and, "taken and read together"
did not require respondent to file. Further, according to

respondent, the EPA instruction booklet for 1987 reporting advised

3 Answer to the Complaint, { 12 at 2, and { 19(e) at 3, Cf.
§ of the complaint, at 2.

4 1d4. § 13.

5 Id.



that "CAS [Chemical Abstract Service Registry] numbers for
chemicals required [to be reported] under Section 313 are cross-
referenced with an alphabetical list of trade names and chemical
names in Table III of the instructions," but 2-Butyoxyethanol --
which has a CAS number -- was not so cross-referenced and not
listed with the alphabetical list of trade names and chemical
names. However, respondent states, other members of the glycol
ether family which are toxic and do have CAS numbers were
specifically listed in Table III by name and cross-referenced by
CAS number.$,’

Complainant’s memorandum argues in effect that 2-Buty-
oxyethanol (referred to as "EB" in the parties’ memorandums) had to
be reported even though it was not listed specifically at 40 C.F.R.
§§ 372.45(a) by name or cross-referenced in § 372.45(b) by CAS
number in the list of chemicals for which reporting was required,
because it is a glycol ether. "Glycol ethers" are a "category" of
chemicals that, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(c), must be
reported. Complainant argues further that respondent’s construction

of the regulation would render section 372.65(c) superfluous or

¢ Answer, § 19 at 3.

7 Table III appears in certain materials distributed by EPA to
assist the regulated community in understanding its responsibil-
ities under the then-new Act. When the regulations were published
in final form, it became 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, which is the reference
used herein. Section 372.65(a) is the list of reportable chemicals
by name; section 372.65(b) is a list of the same chemicals by CAS
number order, starting with the lowest number. Section 372.65c is
a list of chemical categories.



meaningless. [Section 372.65(c) contains the 1list of "chemical
categories" for which reporting is required].

The parties were unable to resolve the issue of respondent’s
liability for failure to file the Form R and made pretrial exchange
according to schedule. Stipulations were filed and the matter set
for trial. Thereafter, the parties each moved for "accelerated
decision, " and the trial was continued pending resolution of the
motions. The sole issue presented for determination is whether the
regulations gave fair or adequate notice of EPA’s intention that
the use of 2-Butyoxyethanol had to be reported.

Summary judgment is warranted only if the pleadings, answers
to interrogatories, admissions, affidavits, and other material
submitted by the parties demonstrate that genuine issues of
material fact are absent and that the case may be resolved as a
matter of law. Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, 477 U.S. 242 (1986).
Here the parties agree that the motions raise only questions of law
and that liability may be resolved on that basis. The
regulation which governs this matter provides as follows in
pertinent part:

Subpart D - SPECIFIC TOXIC CHEMICAL LISTINGS, § 372.65 --

Chemicals and chemical categories to which this

part applies.

The reporting requirements of this Part apply

to the following chemicals and chemical cate-
gories. This section contains three listings.
Paragraph (a) of this section is an alphabetical
order listing of those chemicals that have an
associated Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) Regis-
try number. Paragraph (b) of this section contains
a CAS number order list of the same chemicals listed

5



in paragraph (a) of this section. Paragraph (c) of
this section contains the chemical categories for
which reporting is required. These chemical cate-
gories are listed in alphabetical order and do not

have CAS numbers. Each listing identifies the effective
date for reporting under § 372.30. %

(a) Alphabetical listing.

Acetaldehyde .............. 75-07-0 1/01/87
Acetamide......uivivennnnn. 60-35-5 1/01/87
J:Vol=) o) ¢ L= 67-64-1 1/01/87
Acetonitrile............... 75-05-8 1/01/87
2-Acetylaminofluorene...... 53-96-3 1/01/87

[The names of over 300 additional chemicals follow,
listed alphabetically with CAS numbers and
effective reporting dates.]’®

(b) CAS Number listing.

50-00-0....Formaldehyde 1/01/87
51-28-5....2,3 Dinitrophenol 1/01/87
51-75-2....Nitrogen mustard [2-Chloro-

N- (2-chloroethyl) -N-methyl-

ethanamine 1/01/87
51-79-6....Urethane (Ethyl carbamate) 1/01/87
52-68-6....Trichlorfon . . . 1/01/87

[The names of over 300 additional chemicals
follow, listed in order of CAS number].

(c) Chemical categories in alphabetical order. . .

Paragraph (c¢) contains about 20 chemical categories, 1listed

alphabetically, including "glycol ethers."

The language of the opening paragraph of section 372.65 shows

! The proposed rule appeared at 52 Federal Register, No. 107
at 21152, June 4, 1987. The final rule was published at 53 Federal

Register 4500 on February 16, 1988, with certain differences not
relevant here.

® See Appendix attached to this decision.
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why the parties differ vigorously in their interpretations. The
listings in paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) contribute further to the
problem. This regulation is an example of the difficulties

encountered in producing lengthy and detailed implementing
regulations in a relatively short time in connection with a new
statute. Respondent bases its interpretation in part upon the

language set out below in bold type, starting with its title:

Subpart D - SPECIFIC TOXIC CHEMICAL LISTINGS
Chemicals and chemical categories to which this part
applies.

The reporting requirements of this Part apply

to the following chemicals and chemical categories.
This section contains three listings. Paragraph (a)
of this section is an alphabetical order listing of
those chemicals that have an associated Chemical Abstract
Service (CAS) Registry number. Paragraph (b) of this
section contains a CAS number order list of the same
chemicals listed in paragraph (a) of this section.
Paragraph (c) of this section contains the chemical
categories for which reporting is required. These
chemical categories are listed in alphabetical order
and do not have CAS numbers. Each listing identifies

the effective date for reporting under § 372.30.

Bearing in mind that this section purports to list chemicals which



have to be reported, respondent concluded from the language here

and from the absence of 2-Butyoxyethanol in the paragraph (a)
listings, that the use of 2-Butyoxyethanol did not have to be
reported. Respondent was fortified in its reading by the presence
in the paragraph (a) and (b) listings of other glycol ethers which
have CAS numbers. It is clear, too, why respondent concluded that
the chemical categories listing [paragraph (c) of section 372.65]
was intended to cover chemicals that did not have CAS numbers but
were to be reported. Such chemicals obviously could not be listed
in paragraphs (a) and (b). Since there are glycol ethers that do
not have CAS numbers, and would be covered by paragraph (c), the
appearance of "glycol ethers" in the "categories" list does not
create an ambiguity or a warning that respondent was, in EPA’S
view, on the wrong track. The evidence in complainant’s pretrial
exchange indicates that respondent had arrived at its
interpretation contemporaneously, not simply in defense to the
complaint.!® Further, although reliance of a respondent upon its
chemicals supplier’s opinion of the meaning of a regulétion would
seldom be considered helpful to a defense, in these circumstances
the supplier’s wview that 2-Butyoxyethanol did not have to be
reported simply suggests that other readers could read section

372.65(a), (b), and (c) (as well as certain other materials

1 see complainant’s exhibit 1 to pretrial exchange, wherein
the EPA inspector reports at 2-3 respondent’s explanation (on
September 11, 1989) of why it did not file a Form R for 1987 usage
of 2-Butyoxyethanol.



published by way of explanation and guidance!') in the same way
as did respondent.?
Complainant bases its interpretation in part upon the language

of section 372.65 set out below in bold type:
Subpart D- SPECIFIC TOXIC CHEMICAL LISTINGS
Chemicals and chemical categories to which this
part applies.
The reporting requirements of this Part apply
to the following chemicals and chemical cate-
gories. This section contains three listings.
Paragraph (a) of this section is an alphabetical
order listing of those chemicals that have an
associated Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) Regis-
try number. Paragraph (b) of this section
contains a CAS number order list of the same
chemicals listed in paragraph (a) of this section.
Paragraph (c) of this section contains the chem-
ical categories for which reporting is required.
These chemical categories are listed in alpha-
betical order and do not have CAS numbers. Each
listing identifies the effective date for report-

ing under § 372.30.

1 See discussion of certain materials at pages 16-17, infra.

2 gee affidavit of Mr. Phil Padron, who is the chemist and
Safety Officer for respondent, which appears as attachment 1 to
respondent’s Memorandum 1n Support of Respondent’s Motion for
Accelerated Decision and in Opposition to Complainant’s Motion for
Partial Accelerated Decision.



Complainant urges that respondent’s interpretation is not
valid because it would render useless or meaningless the "chemical
categories" listing in paragraph (c). This argument reflects the
principle of statutory construction that requires a presumption
that every provision of a statute!® has a purpose, such that the
statute must be construed to give effect to each of its provisions.
This principle, ut res magin valeat guam pereat, is well known and
is commonly applied. DeSisto College v. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills,
706 F. Supp. 1479, 1495 (M. D. Fla. 1989); Sutherland Stat. Constr.
Section 46.06 (4th Ed.). However, respondent’s interpretation does
not render paragraph (¢) superfluous or meaningless. As has been
noted above, respondent reads paragraph (c¢) as requiring the
reporting of chemicals in those categories that do not have CAS
Registry numbers. Such chemicals, including the glycol ethers that
do not have CAS numbers,! could not be listed in paragraph (a) and
cross-listed in paragraph (b). Hence, a "chemical categories" list
was needed in order to make such chemicals reportable.

Another principle of statutory interpretation is useful in

these circumstances: expressio unius est exclusion alterius, that

the mention of one thing implies the exclusion of another. DeSisto

B When a regulation is legislative in character, rules of
construction applicable to statutory construction should be used in
determining its meaning. Sutherland Stat. Const., Section 46.06
(4th EQ4.).

4 See Respondent’s Memorandum at 6, and the affidavit of Mr.
Padron (Attachment 1 thereto): 2 Ethylbutylglycol and 2 Ethylbutyl
Acetate do not have CAS Registry numbers.
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College v. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills, supra, at 1495. Here, where
no explanation appears in the record -- not to mention in the
regulation itself -- for the listing of some CAS Registry numbered
glycol ethers’ in paragraphs (a) and (b) but not others, this
principle has clear and logical application.

In the absence of warning signs, and nothing that complainant
raises in this connection can really be so viewed, or reasons why
respondent should have been alerted to the danger of the
construction which it did make, respondent cannot be held liable
for failing to act in accordance with other ©possible
interpretations. Neither should respondent be held liable for not
making a protective filing even if it can be argued that it should

have considered an alternative construction.!¢

3 14. 2-Methoxyethanol ("EM") and 2-Ethoxyethanol ("EE") are
glycol ethers and have CAS Registry numbers 109-86-4 and 110-80-5.
They are listed by name in paragraph (a) of 40 C.F.R. § 372.65 and
cross-listed in paragraph (b) by CAS number.

1 At some point in the further progress of this case, if there
is any, it will no doubt be argued that respondent could not
possibly have really believed that only the few glycol ethers
listed alphabetically and by CAS number were reportable, and/or
that since respondent was sophisticated enough to know there are
glycol ethers without CAS numbers, then it must also have reasoned
that there must have been some explanation as to why all of the
glycol ethers that have CAS numbers were not listed. Whatever the
reason why some but not others were listed, when all were intended
to be reported, it does not appear in this record. Further, any
finding relating to a lack of credibility on respondent’s part,
which would be implicit in the imposition of liability based upon
respondent’s supposed sophistication, cannot be made on this
record. It is noted that complainant’s exhibit 1 in pretrial
exchange (report of the September 11, 1989, inspection of
respondent’'s facility at 2) records that respondent did not think
that 2-Butyoxyethanol was regarded as "that toxic." This belief was
consistent with the fact that 2-Butyoxyethanol was not specifically
listed.

11



Respondent relies not just upon the language of section 372.65
and the absence of 2-Butyoxyethanol from the paragraph (a) and (b)
listings,! but also upon certain EPA documents which offer support
for respondent’s position. A document entitled Toxic Chemical
Release Inventory Reporting Form R and Instructions, Section 313 of
the Emergency Planning and Right-To-Know Act, issued March, 1988,

from the EPA Office of Toxic Substances!® states as follows:

PART III. CHEMICAL SPECIFIC INFORMATION

. . . 1.2 CAS Registry Number
You must enter the Chemical Abstracts Service
(CAS) registry number that apears in Table III
on page 28 for the chemical being reported. . . .
If you are reporting one of the chemical categories
in Table III (c) of the rule (e.g. copper
compounds), enter [N/A] in the CAS number space.
CAS numbers for chemicals required under section
313 are cross referenced with an alphabetical list
of trade names and chemical names in Table III of
these instructions and section 372.65 of the rule.

(Emphasis added).

7 Complainant states that respondent’s interpretation "turns
[only] upon its interprettion of the listings of the chemicals
required to be reported." Complainant’s Memorandum in Support of
Motion for Partial Accelerated Decision, at 5.

* This document was submitted as respondent’s exhibit 1 in
pretrial exchange.

12



This instruction, in addition to making a clear statement that CAS
numbers for chemicals required under section 313 are cross
referenced with an alphabetical list of trade names, would have
required respondent [had it believed that 2-Butyoxyethanol was to
be reported pursuant to paragraph (c), "chemical categories"], to
enter "[N/A]" (presumably, "not applicable") in the CAS number
space on the Form R, even though 2-Butyoxyethanol has a CAS number.
This is a result which a reasonable member of the regulated
community might quickly reject as against common sense in the
search (if it were even suspected that a search was necessary) for
the correct interpretation of section 372.65 as regards the
reporting of glycol ethers having CAS numbers. Virtually the same
paragraph as the one set out above appears in the "Revised 1988
Version," dated January, 1989, (months after Form Rs for 1987
reporting were to have been filed).

Complainant argues that if respondent’s interpretation is
accepted, large numbers of glycol ethers that have CAS Registry
numbers (at least 291) would not be reportable. This, while true,
is irrelevant to a determination of whether the wording of section
372.65 gave fair notice at the time respondent was working through
it and the 1987-1988 EPA instruction documents in an effort to
determine who had to file Form Rs for what chemicals and when. The

concern raised by complainant, of course, is not respondent’s. It

 Toxiec Chemical Release Inventory Reporting Foxrm R and
Instructions, Revised 1988 Version, Section 313 of the Emergency
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act, Revised January, 1989.
This document was submitted as RX 2 in pretrial exchange.
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belongs to the draftors of the regulation. Even if respondent’s
interpretation does not make sense in the context of the health and
safety objectives of the Act -- and there is no evidence that it
did not make sense to respondent® -- "it is the regulation as
written that must bear the blame." Diamond Roofing Co., Inc. v.
Occupational Safety and Health Review Commission, 528 F. 2d 645,
650 (C.A. 5, 197s6).

Last, complainant argues that the preamble to the final rule
should have alerted respondent that all glycol ethers had to be
reported. This assertion is based upon Section VIII, Chemical List

Issues, Subsection B.5 (53 Federal Register 4519), which states:

5. Glycol Ethers. Commenters suggested
that the Agency should include specific
glycol ethers in the chemical specific
listings of § 372.65(a) and (b) of the rule
and remove it as a category form ([sic] §
372.65(c). EPA considers this an amendment
or modification to the list of chemicals
and is not changing the list in this

rulemaking.?

2 In fact, there is evidence that it did make sense to
respondent, which believed 2-Butyoxyethanol and some other glycol
ethers were not "that toxic". See report of the September 11,
1989, inspection of —respondent’s facility, submitted with
complainant’s pretrial exchange as exhibit 1, at 2-3.

2 Complainant’s Memorandum at 8.
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A reading of this language would have done nothing to alert
respondent that paragraph (c) of the rule meant that all glycol
ethers had to be reported. The words " (C)ommenters suggested that
the Agency should include specific glycol ethers in the chemical
specific listings . . . and remove it as a category . . . . "
hardly states the problem for what it was: i. e. that the language
of section 372.65, the specific listing of some glycol ethers, and
the instruction books published before July 1, 1988, had created
the impression that the only reportable glycol ethers with CAS
numbers were those specifically listed. The last sentence of the
preamble set out above is by no means clear enough to constitute
notice of the interpretation contended for by complainant. Indeed,
that the commenters’ suggestions were viewed only as an "amendment
or modification" tells nothing of the substance of the dispute. It
is noted that on March 21, 1989, almost nine months after the Form
R that is the subject of this proceeding was to have been filed,
EPA published a 1ist of 291 glycol ethers that have CAS numbers and

which were considered reportable by EPA. #? While complainant says

this 1list was published "as guidance,"® it unquestionably
constitutes recognition that there had been a rather widespread
problem with the interpretation of section 372.65 and certain other
documents pertaining to responsibilities under EPCRA.

In sum, it is concluded that adequate notice was not given

2 Complainant’s Memorandum at 8. (See also attachment 3 of
complainant’s pretrial exchange). The list was stated to be not
"all inclusive".

» 1d.
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here of the reportability of 2-Butyoxyethanol for calendar year
1987, and that instructional materials issued in connection with
sections 372.30 and 372.65 reporting contributed to the problem.
As the court in Diamond Roofing, supra, * stated with respect to
an Occupational Health and Safety Administration regulation, "(A)n
employer is entitled to fair notice in dealing with his government.
Like other statutes and regulations which allow monetary penalties
against those who violate them, [a regulation] must give . . . fair
warning of the conduct it prohibits or requires, and it must
provide a reasonably clear standard of culpability to circumscribe
the discretion of the enforcing authority and its agents . . . (I)f
regulation subjects private parties to criminal or civil sanctions,
a regulation cannot be construed to mean what an agency intended

but did not adequately express."®

% See page 13, supra.

¥ Opinion of Chief Judge of the Fifth Circuit John R. Brown in
Diamond Roofing, supra, at 649. Accord, opinion by then Circuit
Judge Scalia in Gates & Fox Company, Inc. v. Occupational Health
and Safety Administration, 790 F. 24 154, 156 (D. C. Cir. 1986).
Where fair or adequate notice of required conduct is not given,
case law almost uniformly holds that there is no liability for
failure to act according to the standard or regulation which
purports to specify such conduct. The exception of Rollins
Environmental Services (NJ), Inc. v. EPA, 937 F. 2d 649, where the
D.C. Circuit in 1991 held that because the regulation in question
was ambiguous and confusing, respondent could not be penalized, but
could be found liable, must be limited to the exact circumstances
of that case. The opinion is Rollins is difficult because, while
the court is unanimous in holding that no penalty could be imposed,
it split over the imposition of liability. The dissent believed
that the imposition of 1liability was itself a form of civil
forfeiture. This analysis is not a small matter, since under EPA
penalty policies, previous violations are taken into account in
proposing penalties if a respondent is subsequently sued by EPA,
and, for previous "violators" the penalty can be higher. In any
case, respondent is not resident in the D. C. Circuit.

16



The government must, in order to continue to enjoy the
confidence of the reguléted community, the public, and the courts
in the conduct of its enforcement activities, occasionally bear the
consequences of unclear wording in the extensive and detailed
implementing regulations for its statutory responsibilities. This
should be regarded as a small price to pay for the maintenance of
credibility and public trust, and for a reputation of fairness in

dealing with the regulated community.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Respondent is a "person" as defined at § 329(7) of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. 11049(7).

2. Respondent is the owner or operator of a ﬁfacility," as
defined at § 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), at which it
blends and packages detergents for commercial laundries and car
wash operations,? and employs ten or more full time employees, as
defined by regulation.

3. Respondent falls within Standard Industrial Codes 20-39.

4. Respondent’s facility processed 2-Butyoxyethanol in excess
of 75,000 pounds in calendar year 1987.

5. In determining its responsibilities under the then-new Act
in early 1988, respondent considered the language of 40 C.F.R. §§
372.65(a), (b), and (c), as well as certain instructional guidance

documents published by EPA in connection therewith, and concluded

¥ Complainant’s exhibit 1, at page 2 of the report of the
September 11, 1989, inspection of respondent’s facility.
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that the filing of a Form R for the use of 2-Butyoxyethanol was not
required for calendar year 1987. Respondent relied contemporan-
eously upon its interpretation of the regulation and the guidance
materials in forming its belief that no filing for the year 1987
was required.”

6. The interpretation contended for by complainant is not
adequately expressed, and fair notice of such interpretation was
not given to respondent for the determination which it had to make
of the need to file a Form R for 2-Butyoxyethanol processing in
1987.

7. After the publication of the list of 291 reportable glycol
ethers on March 21, 1989, respondent did file a Form R for the
processing of 2-Butyoxyethanol.?®

8. Respondent is not liable for its failure to file a Form R

for 2-Butyoxyethanol for calendar year 1987 by July 1, 1988.

7 It is assumed that complainant would not dispute the factual
findings in paragraphs 5 and 7 of these findings, since they are
based upon material which appears in complainant’s pretrial
exchange. In an abundance of caution, however, provision will be
made for any challenge complainant may wish to make by way of a
motion for reconsideration.

2 gee respondent’s exhibit 20 in pretrial exchange, also
attached to respondent’s Memorandum, in which a letter of June 6,
1990, from EPA notes that respondent did file a Form R for calendar
year 1988, and in which EPA states that it is trying to "determine

the consistency o©f reporting, [and] we are contacting all
facilities which reported for one year but not both years [i. e.
1987 and 1988].*" See also report of the September 11, 1989,

inspection of respondent’s facility, submitted as an exhibit in
complainant’s pretrial exchange.
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ORDER
Accordingly, respondent having been found not liable for the
violation charged, respondent’s motion for "accelerated decision"
is hereby granted. And it is FURTHER ORDERED that complainant’s

motion for "accelerated decision" herein is denied.

And it is FURTHER ORDERED that this matter be, and it is
hereby, dismissed with prejudice.

Any motion for reconsideration of findings 5 and 7 herein
based upon lack of notice to complainant that such factual findings
would be made shall be filed no later than fifteen (15) days from

this date.

- o= -- ~—

J. F. Greene
Administrative Law Judge

Washington, D.C.
February 28, 1993
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APPENDTIX




gnvironmental Protection Agency

Subpart D—Specific Toxic Chemical
Listings

§372.65 Chemicals and chemical catego-
ries to which this part applies.

The requirements of this part apply
to the following chemicals and chemi-
cal categories. This section contains
three listings. Paragraph (a) of this
section is an alphabetical order listing
of those chemicals that have an associ-
ated Chemical Abstracts Service (CAS)

. § 372.65

Registry number. Paragraph (b) of
this section contains a CAS number
order list of the same chemicals listed
in paragraph (a) of this section. Para-
graph (¢) of this section contains the
chemical categories for which report-
ing is required. These chemical catego-
ries are listed in alphabetical order
and do not have CAS numbers. Each
listing identifies the effective date for
reporting under § 372.30.

(a) Alphabdetical listing.

Chemical name CAS No. Effective date

Acelaldehyde 75-07-0 01/01/87
Acetamice 60~-35-5 01/01/87
Acetone 67641 01/01/87
Acetonitrile 75-05-8 01/01/87
2-Acetylaminofivorene §3-96-3 01/01/87
Agroien 107-02-8 01/01/87
Acrytamide ......... 75-06-1 01/01/87
Acryiic acd ....... 79-10-7 01/01/87
Agrylonmtnile ... 107-13-1 01/01/87
Algnin(1,4:5,8.Ormethanonaphthalene, 1.2.3.4,10,10-hexachioro-1,4.4a.5.8 8a-

hexahydro-(1.alpha..4.2ipha..4a.beta..5.alpha..8.aipha., 8a.bel )] ocerinnee 30$-00-2 01/01/87
Altyt alcoho! 107-18-8 1/01/90
Altyt chionde . 107-Q5-1 01/01/87
Agminum (fume or dust) 7429-90-5 01/01/87
Ajurminum oxide (fibrous forms) 1344-28-1 01/01/87
2-Amunganthraquinone 117-79-3 01/01/87
4-Aminocazobenzene i 60-09-3 01701787
s-Aminopichenyl ! 92-67-1 01/01/87
TeAMIAC-2-MEINYISNMINTAGUINONG ... ... coree e ccaeacaaremsrsaraseesserasasas asratssesmsssmensns sonssmennassesanssriasasen | 82-28-0 . 01701787
Ammenia ........... 7664-41-7 ' o1/01/87
Ammonmum nitrate (solution) 6484-52-2 01/01/87
Ammomum sylfate (soluton) 7783-20-2 01/01/87
Anthne .................... e rerereeshesssesesarasssrestesetebttLteansnran et eas e snte aRe sarerbaeana baee aee bannsastaraestessernen 62-53-3 , 01/01/87
o-Anmsigine ........ 90-04-0 i 01/01/87
SAnmsihne ... 104-54-9 ; 01/01/87
o-Amisidine hydrochionce. ! 134-29-2 i 01/01/87
Anthracena . - | 120-12-7 ' 01/01/87
Antmony ! 7440-360 01/01/87
Arsenic ... 7440-38-2 . 01/01/87
Aspestos {iriadble) 1332-21-4 | 01/01/87
Sarum 7440-39-3 ! 01/01/87
Benzat chionde 98-87-3 ' 01/01/87
Benzamice §5-21-0 . 01/01/87
Benzene 71-43-2 i 01/01/87
Senzidine 92-87-5 01/01/87
Senzowc tnchionde (Benzotnchloride) 98-07-7 01/01/87
Benzoyl chioride 98-88-4 01/01/87
S8enzoy! peroxide 94-36~0 01/01/87
8enzy! chionde 100~44-7 01/01/87
Serylium 7440-41-7 01/01/87
Biphenyi. 92-52-4 01/01/87
Bis(2-chioroethyi) ether 111444 01/01/87
Bis(chicromethyl) ether 542-88-1 01/01/87
Si1s(2-chioro-1-methytethyl) ether 108-80-1 01/01/87
Bi5(2-athyihexyl) adipate 103-23-1 01/01/87
Bromochlorodifivoromethane (MHalon 1211) 353-59-3 7/8/90
Bromgtom (Tribromomethane) 75-25-2 01/01/87
Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) 74~83-9 01/01/87
Sromotrtivoromethane (Halon 1301) 75-83-8 7/8790
1,3-Butadiene 106-99-0 01701787
Butyt acrydate 141-32-2 01/01/87
n-Butyl alcohol 71-36-3 01/01/87
sec-Butyl aicohot 78-92-2 01/01/87
terr-Butyt aicohol 75-85-0 01/01/87
Butyl benzyl phthalate 85-58-7 | 0v/01/87
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1.2-3utylene Oxide 106-88-7 01/01/87
3 123-72-8 01/03/87
C.l. Acid Green- 3 4680-78-8 01/01/87
C.. Sasic Green 4 569-84-2 01/01/87
C.l. Sasic Red 1t 989~-38-3 01/01/87
C.I. Direct Slack 38 1937=37-7 01/01/87
C.l. Owect Swe 8 2602~48-2 01/01/37
G.I. Direct Srown 95 18071-86-8 01/01/87
C.l. Disperss Yellow 3 2832-40-8 01/01/87
C.l. Food Red 5 3781-53-3 Q1/01/87
C.l. Food Rea 15 31-88-9 Q1/01/87
C.1. Soivert Orange 7. 3118-97-8 01/01/87
C.l. Sotvent Yeilow 3 97-56-3 01/01/87
C.l. Sotvent Yeilow 14 842-07-9 014/01/87
C.l. Soivent Yeilow 34 (Aunmine) 492-80-8 01/01/87
C.l. Vat Yeilow 4 128-86-S 01/01/87
Cagmium 7440-43-~9 01/01/87
Caloum cyanarmide 158~82-7 01/01/87
Captan{1H-iscindole-1,3(2H)-dione.Ja. 4.7, 7 a-leranydro-2- [ (tichioromethyi)thia I-1.......... 133-06-2 01/01/87
Carbaryt (1-Naphthaienol, methyicarbamate] 83-25-2 01/01/87
Carbon disuifide 75-15-0 01/01/87
Carbon tewachionde 56-23-5 01/01/87
Carvonyl sulfide 483-58-1 01/01/87
Catecrol 120-80-9 | o1/01/87
Chicrampan [Benzoic acid.3-amino-2,5-tichicro-1 133-90-4 i Q1/Q1/87
Chlorgane [4,7-Methanoindan,1,2.4,5.8.7.8.8-octachioro-2,3.32,4.7.7a-hexanydro-1........ : §7-74-9 01/01/87
Chionne 7782-30-5 01/01/87
Chionne gioxide. 10049-04-4 01/01/87
Chicroacebe acid ! 79-11-8 01/01/87
2-Chioroacetophenone i §32-27-4 01/01/87
CRIOPODBNZONG .......c.ccnmrirvesmncnrecortsiresismssnessacsnsaseanases sisssrasscansassrensscate ssceassbsesenesestormsssnssnssaasansessis ; 108-90-7 01/01/87
Chicrobendiate ([Benzeneacetc acid. 4-chioro-.alpha.-{4-.chiorophenyll- alpha.-hy- | .

droxy-, ethyt astecl i 510-15-6 i Q1/01/87
Chiarcethane (Ethyl chionde) 75-00-3 | 01/01/87
Chicroform 67-66-3 i 031/01/87
Chigrometnane {Methy! chionge.............. 74-37-3 ) 01/01/87
Chicrometny! metnyt ether. . 107-30-2 . 01/01/87
Chioroprena ........ reeerenararaneaenaens ©26-99-3 . 01/01/87
Cmiorotnaicnd [1.3-3enzenecicardonitrie.2.4.5 6-tetrachicres-1 .. 1897-45-5 ' Q1/01/87
Chromeum .. © et eenren ecrene e eeaeenenerannteate 7340-47-3 . Qvov/87
CoDa ... 7440-49-4 i Q1/01/87
COBPON........comvememrecec e reimsminessesmsmes sesssseas s ensmeneams e : 7440-50-8 | 01/01/87
Crecsote..... . 8001-58-9 i 1/01790
P-COBSIAIN@ ... cveereceeteremtr e sesneseesseseatsant e e saasee s Sose s ot aavasssasanssssararnsesssasssusnssmanatsbaressasanasra / 120-71.8 i 01/01/87
Cresol (mixed 1somers) N 1319-77-3 ¢ 01/01/87
[TRCL@SD .....oceoeveeeceereeeveanesesssessonssretarasssontonsen K 108-39-4 © 01/01/87
O-CIBSO .....o.oicrneiceeseoresmssscasssinssasstssnecns en s e ssstn b s s St bennare et se st st e aE et bebecrsaebusas e enne et s : 95-48-7 ¢ 01/01/87
p-Cresol ... : 106=44-5 P Q1/01/87
Cumene i 98-82-8 01/01/87
Cumaene hydroperoxice 80-15-9 01/01/87
Cupterron{8enzeneammne, N-nydroxy-N-niroso. ammonium sait] 135-20-6 01/01/87
Gyclohexane 110-82-7 01701787
2.4.0 {Acetic acid, (2, 4-dichiorophenoxy)-] 94-75-7 01/01/87
Oecabromociphenyt onde 1163-19-5 Q1/01/87
Oialate [Cartamothioic acid, bis(1-methylethyl)-, S-(2.3-dichioro-2-propenyi) ester]........ 2303-16-4 Q1/01/87
2.4.-Diamincarusole §15-05-4 Q1/0v/87
2.4-Dramincanisole sulfate 39156-41-7 Q1/01/87
4.4’ -Darmunodiphenyl ether 101-80-4 01/01/87
Diaminotoiuene (Mixed isomers) 25378-45-8 01/01/87
2.4-Dvaminotoluene 95-80-7 01/01/87
Diazomethane 334-88-3 01/01/87
Owenzoturan 132-64-9 01/01/87
1,2-Drgromo-3-chiorapropane (DBCP) 96-12-8 01/01/87
1,2-Dibromoethane (Etnylene dibromice) 106-93-4 01/01/87
Dibromotetrativaroethane (Halon 2402) 124-73-2 7/8790
Diburyl pnthaiate 84-74-2 01/01/87
Dichiorobenzene (mixed isomers) 23321-22-8 01/01/87
1.2-Oichicrobenzene 95-50-1 01/01/87
1.3-Ochiorotenzens 541-73-1 01/01/87
1,4-Dicnicrobenzene 106~46-7 01/01/87
3.3"-Oichiorobenndine 91-94-1 01/01/87
Dwhiorotromomethane 75-27-4 01/01/87
Owehiorodiftucromethane (CFC-12) 75-71-8 7/8/90
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1,.2-Dichioroethane (Ethylene dichionde) 107-06-2 01/01/87
1.2-Dichicrethyiene 540-59-0 01/01/87
Owchioromethane (Methylene chioride) 75-09-2 01/01/87
2.4-Dichiorophenot 120-83-2 01/01/87
1.2-Dichioropropane 78-87-5 01/01/87
2.3-Dichioropropene 78-88-8 1/01/90
1,3-Dichioropropyiene. 542-75-8 01/01/87
Dichlorotetrafiuorosthane (CFC-114) 76-14-2 7/8/90
Dichiorves [Phosphoric acid, 2.2-dichioroethenyt dimethyt ester) 62-73-7 01/01/87
Drcotol [Benzenemaethanol,4-chioro-.alpha. -(4-chiorophenyi)-.aipha.-{trichioramethyl)-1 ... 115-32-2 01/01/87
Drepoxybutane 1464-53-5 01/01/87
Orethanciamne 111-42-2 01701787
D(2-ethyihexyt) phthalate (DEHP) 177-81-7 01/01/87
Drethyt phthalate 84-86-2 01/01/87
Dretnyl suttate 64-67-5 01/01/87
3.3 .Dimethoxyberzidine 119-90-4 01/01/87
4-Dimethylammoazobenzene 80-11-7 01/01/87
3.3 .Dimethylbenzidine (o-Tolidine) 119-93-7 01/01/87
Dimaethyicarbamyt chioride 79-44-7 01/01/87
1,3-Dimethyl hydrazine 57-14-7 01/01/87
2.4-Dimethyiphenol 105-87-9 01/01/87
Oimethy! phthalate 131=-11-3 01/01/87
Dimethy! sultate 77-78-1 01/01/87
M-DINIMPODBNZONE ..........ccveveneieanrirraionessentrssmsnsmsssstssestsseseersasastsssssanssseessansasssssensensresassestessassss soens 99-85-0 1701/90
o-Dinirobenzene ' 528-29-0 1/01/90
p-Oinirobenzene . N 100-25-4 1/01/90
4.5-DINIMIO-0-CTBBOL........occerecimccist e seetstnten e nsan s reasesssat st h e ssmsne st te ch s arabasarsnasasnensansasssonns ] 534-52-1 01/01/87
2.4-Dnrrophencl . I $1-28-5 01/01/87
2.4.Dinrotoluene i 121-14-2 01/01/87
2.6-Oinrtrotoluene ! 606-20-2 01/01787
onirotoiyene (mixed 1SOME@IS)..ccocveens ceverennne 25321-14-6 1/01/90
~Thoctyt phthalate . K 117-84-0 01701787
1.4-Ooxane. ! 123-91-1 01/01/87
1.2-Drchenyinyarazine (Hydrazobenzene ; 122-66-7 01/01/87
Eoxcmigrohydnn 106-89-8 01/01/87
2-Ztnoxyethanol .......... 110-80-5 04/01/87
Sinyl acrylate......cnveneees reemeant et aareatn et saes 14C-88-5 01/01/87
Einylbenzene ... - 100414 01/01/87
Zinyl chioroformate Heteesrteseestteseeaassessenres b eainteaansesbenss catmrneenbasnsaraneans saareseresen : 541-41-3 01/01/87
Emylene ..o ' 74-85-1 01/01/87
Cirylens ghyCol.. e 107-21-1 01/01/87
£:nyleneimina(A2:nging) .... 151-56—4 01/01/87
Etnylene oxide.. 75-21-8 01/01/87
Sinylane thiouras o 96-45-7 01/01/87
Fluomaeturon<{Urea. N,N-dimetnyl-N -{3-(trifluorometnyl)pnenyld-1........ccoceemecoeueeremmensnvenrnnst 2164-17-2 Q1/01/87
£ srmaidenyde i 50-00-0 01701787
Freon 113 [Etnhane, 1,1,2-tnchioro-1,2.2-trifluoro-] : 76-13-1 01/01/87
=eptachior(1.4,5.6,7.8.8-Heptachioro-3a.4.7,7a-tetrahydro-4,7-methanc- 1 H-indene ] ........ ! 76—44-8 01/01/87
Hexachiorobenzene : 118-74-1 01/01/87
=exachiora-1.3-dutadiene 87-68-3 01/01/87
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene T7=4T74 01701/87
Hexachioroethane 67-72-1 01/01/87
Hexachioronaphthaiene 1335-87-1 01/01/87
Hexamaethytphosphoramide 680-31-9 01/01/87
Hydrazine 302-01-2 01/01/87
Hydrazine sulfate 10034-93-2 01/01/87
Hyarochlonc acid 7647-01-0 01/01/87
Hydrogen Cyanide 74-90-8 01/01/87
Hydrogen fluoride 7664-39-3 01/01/87
Fygroguinone 123-31-9 01/01/87
Isobutyralcenyde 78-84-2 01/01/87
isopropy! alcohoi (Only persons who manutacture by the strong acid process are

subject. NO suppher notifiction.) 67-83-0 01/01/87
4,4'-isopropytidenediphencl 80-05-7 01/01/87
Isosatroie 120-58-1 1/01/80
Lead 7439-92-1 01/01/87
Lincane [Cyciahexane, 1.2,3.4.5.6-hexachioro-

(1.alpha..2.alpha J.beta. 4. alpha. . S.alpha 6.beta )] 58-89-9 01/01/87
Malexc anhydnde 108-31-8 01/01/87
Maned [Carbamodithioic acid, 1.2-ethanediyidis-, Manganese COMPMX) .....ccmeero—neeear ] 12427-38-2 01/01/87
Manganese 7439-96-5 01/01/87
Mercury . 7439-97-6 01/01/87
Methano! 67-56~1 01/01/87
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Vethaxychior [Benzene, 1,1°4(2.2.2-trichioroethylidene)bes { 4-mathoxy-] 72-43-5 | otou8r
- 2-Methoxyethanol \ 109-86-—4 01/01/87 .
- Maethyl acrytate | 96-33-3 01/01/87
: Maethyt ‘ert-Dutyt ather ! 1834-04~4 01/01/87
1,4'-Methrylenebes(2-chioroarmiing) (MBOCA) | 101-14-4 01/01/87
1,4'-Methylenebis(V A-dimethyl) berzenarmne : i 101-61-1 01/01/87
Methyienetis{phenytisocysnate) (MBI) [ 101-83-8 81/01/87
Methylene bromide ' 74-95-3 01/01/37
4.4'-Methylenedianiiine 101-77-9 01/01/87
Maethyl athyt ketone 78-93~-3 01/01/87
Methyl hydrazine 80-34—4 01/0%/87
Metnyl sodide 74-88-4 01/Q1/87
Maethyl isobutyl ketone 108-10-1 01/01/87
Mathyi isocyanate 824-83-9 01/01/87
H Methyi methacryiate 80-82-8 01/01/87
' Michier's katone 50-94-8 Q1/01/47
Molybdenum trioxide 1313-27-5 01/01/87
(Mono)jchioropentafluoroethane (CFC-118) 76-15-3 7/8/90
Mustard gas (Ethane, 1,1'-thicbis{2-chioro-] | 505-80-2 01701/87
Naphthalene . 91-20~-3 01/01/87
a/ona-Naphthylamine 134-.32-7 01/01/87
oera-Naphthylamine 91-59-8 01/01/87
Nicket i 7440-02-0 . 01/01/87
Nitnc acd i\ 7697-37-2 ' owet/87
Nitnetnacete acd / 139-13-9 i 0v/01/87
5-Nitro-o-anisidine ; 99-59-2 i 01/01/87
: Nitrobenzene : 98-95-3 ' owQwar
a-Nirotighenyi ; 92-93-3 |  01/01/87
Nitroten {Benzene, 2.4-dichioro-1-{4-mrophenoxy)-] , 1836-75-5 ©01/01/87
Nitrogen mustarg (2-Chioro-N-{2-chioroethyl)-N-methylethanamine]..............cocvereereenrennn i 51.75-2 01/01/87
¢ Nitrogrycenn : 55-63-0 I o1/01/87
i 2-Nnrognenal. 88-75-5 i 01/01/87
. 4-Naroonenc . 100-02-7 | 01/01/87
. 2-Narapropane g 79-16-9 i 01/0 187
2-NHIOSOQIDNONYIAMING ..onrnnmenccrrimsrrsarsssssssennssssasecesesaassssessocroncen .." 156-10-5 i 01/01/87
. N.ACimetnylaniline . 121-63-7 | 01/01/87
° ANeNitrgsodi-r=butylamine 924-16-3 (  01w/01/87
. AN-Nitrosodiethylamme . 33-18-5 ' 01/01/87
: ANIFOSOOIUMEUIYIRIMING ...oeeoereeeeseiaeneasnesemessenvsosn: sesaseasesesness 62-75-9 01/01/87
: NeNITSSACIONENYIAMING ..o " 36-30-8 . 0/0n87
ALNIFOSOCHeMDrODYIBMING cce.eeeeaeeeivaennicarenns §21-54-7 y Q1/01/87
E ALNIFG SOMENYIVINYIAIMUAR.....ccvvereeneerereareennas 4549-40-0 ¢ 01/01/87
: A-Nitroscmormnoline i 59-89-2 . 01/01/87
} ANNIPOSONBINYIUIOB . ...omnneiecnmnernsinirernsine s ssanmnrcseees ] 759-73-9 ;. 01701/87
{ AN-Nitrgso-A-methylurea 684-93-5 ! Q1/01/87
3 N-Nitrasonornicating 16543-55-3 : 01/01/87
i A-Nitrosoprpendine i 100-7%-4 | 01/01/87
[ Octacnioronaphthatene P 2234-13-1 . 0w0v/87
. Qsmium tevoxde i 20816=-12-0 01/01/87
i Paratmien [Phasphorathio acid, O,O-cietnyl-O-{4-mtrophenyl) ester] ..............coove... 56-38-2 01/01/87
{ Pentacniorophenol (PCP). 87-86-5 01/01/87
3 Pearacetc acd 79-21-0 01/01/87
1 Prenoi 108-95-2 01/01/87
p-Phenylenediamine 106-50-3 01/01/87
2-Phenyiphencl 90-43-7 01/01/87
} Phosgene 75-44-5 01/01/87
: Phosonoric acid 7664-38~2 01/01/87
Phaspnorus (yellow or white) 7723-14-0 01/01/87
Prthalic anhydride 85-44-9 Q1/01/87
Pienc acid 88-89-1 01/01/87
Polychionnated biphenyls (PCBs) 1336~36-3 01/01/87
Propane suitone 1120-71-4 01/01/87
beta-Propwiactone 57-57-8 01/01/87
Proponaidenyde 123-38-8 Q1/01/87
Propoxur [Phenci, 2-1-methylethoxy)-, methyicarbamate] 114-26-1 01/01/87
Propytenes (Propene) 115-07-1 01/01/87
Progyleneimine 75-55-8 01/01/87
Propylene oxide. 75-56-9 01/01/87
Pyndine 110-88-1 01/01/87
Quinciine 91-22-§ 01/01/87
Quinone 106-51—4 01/01/87
Cuintozene [Pentachlioronmtrobenzene] 82-68-3 01/01/87
402 -
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” Saccharin (only persons who manutacure are subjeCt NO supplier notification) [1.2-
Benpsothiazol-3(2H)-one, 1,1 -giowde ] 81-07-2 01/01/87
Satrole 94-59-7 01/01/87
Selenwm 7782-49-2 01/01/87
Sitver 7440-22—4 01/01/87
Styrene 100-42-5 01/01/87
: Styrene oxide 96-09-3 01/01/87
Sultune acid 7664-93-9 01/01/87
1.1.2.2-Tetrachioroethane 79-34-5 01/01/87
Tetrachiorosthylene (Perchioroethyiens) 127-18-4 01/01/87
Tetrachiornnphos (Phosphone acd. 2-chioro-1-(2.4,5-trichiorophenyfletnenyl dimethyl
ester) 961-11-§ 01/01/87
Thalhum 7440-28-0 01/01/87
Thicacetamide 62-55-5 01/01/87
4.4 -Thiodianiline 139-65-1 01/01/87
Thiourea 82-56-8 Q1/01/87
Thonum dioxide 1314-20-1 01/01/87
l Titarwum tetrachiorce 7550-45-0 01/01/87
Toiuene . 108-88-3 01/01/87
| Toivene-2,4-diisocyanats ........ 584-34-9 01/01/87
' Toluene-2,6-diisccyanate | 91-08-7 01/01/87
Toluenediisocyanste (mixed isomers) ... | 26471-82-5 : 1/01/90
o-Toluidine .. . o 95-53-4 i 01/01/87
oTomdine hyﬁrocmonco | 636-21-5 i 01/01/87
Toxaphene ! 8001-35-2 01/01/87
} Tnaznquone [2, S-Cydomudnm1 4-dione.2. So17g( 1-AZTNAINYHNY ..ocrenieerraeccseeacne e ! €8-76-8 | 01/01/87
Tnenlorfon [Phosphone acid, (2.2. z-tnchloro-1-hydvoxyethy|)- drmethy! ester] - 52-68-6 = 01/01/87
1.2.4-TRCRIOIODENZENE. ........octvucnencneesineieesrcisene i 120-82-1 , 01/01/87
1.1.1.Tacnicroethane (Metnyl chioreform) : 71-55-6 | 01/01/87
1 1.2-TACTRIOIORININEG ........eecraeree e ceemerrneraensereeerenansnrenans : 75-00-5 . 01/01/87
) Tqenorcethytene. 79-01-6 . 01/01/87
| Tkmamﬂuoromomam (Cr\.-n) ; 75-69-4 i 7/8/90
: 2.4.5-TNCAIOIOBN@NON .......ceuecrueereervraraseseassersassessassraserasmasesirasens 95-95—4 ' 01/01/87
2.4.6-Tnchlorophenot : 88-06-2 . 01/01/87
| Triluralin (Senzeneaming, 2.6-Gniro-N. N-cmroayi-o-(mﬂuoromemy«).n e 1582-09-8  ©  01/01/87
, 1.2.4-Trmetnyibenzene ... ettt et et erra e ran e aoas . 95-83-6 l 01/01/87
Tns(2,3-gibromoprooyt) pnosphau ..... . . . 125-72-7 ¢ 01/01/87
Uretnane (EtNy!l CArDBMALA) ....ccoiiurer it entrecsnc e ambeererssr e sass s e . 51-79-6 , 0wQ/8?
Vanagium (tume or Qust).... SRS 7440-62-2 . 01/01/87
ViRyl QCOUAT ...........ooeoreeemueuncaseassannnssrssnsctesseaes soanrmeens o 108-05-4 i 01/01/87
VAOYS DIOMIMI@ ... cevenvereererercencaasn seeseerenemnneseasnavanesanssasssssees K 593-60-2 I 01/01/87
) Vinyl CHIONGe .......coeuv.-.. K 75-01-4 I 01/01/87
Vinyhdene chionde..... : 75-35-4 01/01/87
Xylene (rmixed somers) i 1330-20-7 I oir01/87
m-Xylene ... \ 108-38-3 | 01/01/87
] o-Kytene ........ . . . ; 95~-47-6 i 01/01/87
p-Xyiene ....... 106—42-3 01/01/87
' 2.6-Xylidine... 87-62-7 01/01/87
Zinc (fume or dust) 7440-66-86 01/01/87
B Zinet {Carbamoditiuoc acid, 1.2-ethanedryitrs-, Zinc complex] 12122-67-7 01/01/87
i
(b
i CAS Number listing.
CAS No. I Chemical name Effective Cate
50-00-0 | Formaidenyde 01/01/87
. 51-28-8 | 2,4-Dirntrophencl Q1/01/87
! $1-75-2 | Nirogen mustard [2-Chioro-N-(2<chioroethyl)-N-methylethanamine ] 01/01/87
' 51.79—6 | Urethane (Ethyl carbamate) 01/01/87
1 £2-638-6 | Trichiorton [Phosphonic acid, (2.2.2-Mchioro-1-hycroxyethyl)-dimethyl ester] ........cmeend I 01/01/87
| 53-96-3 | 2-Acetylaminofivorens 01/01/87
' §5-18-5 | ALNitrosodiethylamine 01/01/87
: 55-21-0 | Benzarmde 01/01/87
! 55-63-0 | Nroglycenin .ccereveenne.. 01/01787
56~23-5 | Carbon tewachionde 01/01/87
56-38-2 | Paratruon [Phosphorothuoe acsd. 0.0-diethyl-O-(4-nitrophenyl)ester] 01/01/87
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§ 372.65
40 CFR Ch. | (7-1-92 Edition)
CAS No. . ;
: Chemical name i Effective date:
§7-14-7 | 1.1.Dimethy) hycrazne
57-57-8 | beta-Propeolactone 01/01/87
§7-74-9 X 01/01/87
o Chioraane (4.7-Methancindan, 1.2.4,5,6.7.8.8-octachiono-2.3.32,4.7, 7¢-hexahydro-] . .....|  01/01/87
(1.aioha. 2 al {Cyciohexane. 1.2.3,4,5.6-hexachioro-
59-89-2 Mmirowmnow: Deta. 4 aipha. 5. aipha. 6.0e1a )] 01/01/87
80~09-3 | 4-Amincazoberzene Q1/01/87
60-11-7 | 4-Oimetfylamincazobenzene 01/01/87
80~34-4 | Methyi hydrazine 01/01/87
60-35-5 | Acetamide 01/01/87
82-53-3 | Aniline 01/01/87
62-55-5 | Thicacetarmide 01/01/87
82-56-8 | Thiourea 01/01/87
82-73-7 | Dichiorves horic acid - 01/01/87
62-75-9 Mmmzmmm 2.2dichioroethenyt dimethyl ester] 01/01/87
1
51075 | Crat: st e o1/01/e7
§7-56-1 | Metnanal 01/01/87
67-63-0 | Isopropyt alcohol (only persons who 01/01/87
K ! manufacture by the strong acid process are subj
67-84-1 Ac::g::" natfcanon not required.) R 01/01/87
§7-66-3 | Chioroform 01/01/87
§7-72-1 | Hexachioroethane 01/01/87
- ? ! " 1
fo.75s | iz (3, Ciraniauna | Laore 138 T e
71-43-2 | Senzens, 01/01/87
s | e e oo
: ; Methoxychior [Benzene, 1,1'(2.2.2,-inchicroethylidens .
:::ggj |l 2’,:;““““ (Methy! bromice) thy R g:;g:;:;
’ i ene . !
74-87-3 : Chiorometnane (Methyl chiond 4 01/01/87
- | e) t
T1-88-4 : Methyl 10d ; 01/01/87
74-30-3 | H,d,;;;,, o | 01/01/87
L : cyande. (
T34-95-3 | Methyiene dromce.... 91/01/87
:5-00-3 . Chioroethane (Sthyl chionde). X 01/01/87
_-;‘g;:; , Vinyl cnionde........ ; g:;g:;::
: Agetonunle ..
752070 | ACBIAICERYEE -oor oo oo . 01/01/87
75-09-2 Owcniorametnane (Methyians cRIGAGE). ... ‘ et 31701487
51650 CAMDOM GISUIAR....orceoo oo oo coeessesse oo sesse oo q Qo187
:5-21-8 ' Etnylene oxida.............. ' prmmmmmmmmmmm————" 01/01/87
LS-ZS—Z . 3romatorm (‘naramomoman.) .............. 01/01/87
75~27-4 ' Orchlorobromomethane ....... . 9w/01/87
;:ji-; : :"Mnaeno chignde.......... ; 3:;8;;:;
=5 | Phosgene..... !
T5-55-8 | Progyleneimine ....... . 01/01/87
75-36-9 | PrODYIBNG GRIEG.ooooooooosoee oo eeeoeeoseeeeeseeseeseeoseeeoeeeeeeee oo eeoeeoeeeeeeeees oo e 1 01/01/87
75-63-8 i Sromotnfiucromethane (Hllon 1301) g 01/01/87
75-85-0 | ferr-Butyl alcahol L gy e8/90
75-69-4 l Tncnloroﬂuoromomam (CFC-11) i 01/01/87
75-71-8 | Dichiorodiflucromethane (CFC-12) 7/8/90
76-14-2 | Dichiorotetraliuorcesnans (CFC-114) 7/8/90
76-15-3 | (Manojchioropentafiucroethane (CFC-115) ;’ 8/90
;7-'3:; :rton 113 [Ethane, 1.1,2-trichioro-1.2.2-nftuoro-1 o1 ,{,?f:‘;
77-47-4 H::rc:‘:?;gc'i‘c;po“&a:f’*”uc 3.4.7.7a-ter .7-methano-1H-ndene] 01/01/87
ne hioro-3 anydro-4.7-methanc- 1H-ndene]..............
77-78-1 | Dimethyt sutfate 01/01/87
78-84-2 | Isobutyraidenyde 01/01/87
76-82-8 | 2.3-Dicnioropropens O /o9
V- .2-ichicropropane
78-92-2 | sec-Butyl alcohol 01/01/87
79:00-5 | 111.2:Tremoroetnan 01/01/87
- .1.2-Trichioroethane
79-01-8 | Trichioroethylene Q1/01/87
79-06-1 | Acrylamide 01/01/87
79-10-7 | Acrytic acd 01/01/87
79-11-8 | Chioroacetic acxd 01/01/87
79-21-0 | Peracatic acid 01/01/87
;9-34-; 10.1 .2.2-Tetrachicrosthane g: ; g: ; :;
9—t4- imethylicarba chioride
T9=46-5 2.N|u°p(mn.w 01/01/87
30-05-7 : 4.4’ -iscprogylidenediphenct 01/01/87
80-15-9 : Cumene hycdroperonde g:;g:;:;
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‘ CAS No. —
" ame Etfective date
8 -07_6 i Sy . 01/01/
1-07- e
: i S Seniotara S o GoaaTTIre M@ subject, 1m0 suppker nashcason) (1.2- oer
81-88-9 : C... Food Red 1§ T ! 01/01/87
82-28-0 ! 1.Ammno-2-methylanthraquinone 01/01/87
82-68-8 ; Cuintozene (Pentachiorontrobenz 01/01/87
ene]
84-56-2 | Diethy! phthalate c12
84-74-2 | Dibutyt phthalate 01/01/87
85~44-9 ; Phthaiic anhydnde 01/01/87
85-68-7 . Buty! benzy! phinaiate 01/01/87
86-30-6 = A-Nitrosodiphertylamine 01/01/87
87-62-7 ' 2,6-Xyudine 01/01/87
87-68-3 | Hexachioro-1,3-outadiene 01/01/87
87-86-5 | Pentachiorophenol (PCP) 01/01/87
88-06-2 2.4.8-Tnchiorophenol 01/01/87
88-75-5 | 2-Nirophenoi 01/01/87
88-89-1 i Picric acd 01/01/87
90-04-0 | o-Arusichne 01/01/87
90-43-7 | 2.Phenytphenot 01/01/87
90-94-8 A Michler's ketone 01/01/87
91-08-7 - Toluene-2:6-diisocyanate 01/01/87
91-20-3 Napntnalene 01/01/87
91-22-5 Quinoiine ) 01/01/87
91-55-8 Dela-Naphthytamine . . 4 Q1/01/87
91-94-1 3.3 -Dicniorobenzicine  oteve?
92-52-¢ Biphenvi el 01701787
92-67-1 4-AmincOiphenyl . 01/01/87
92-47.5 Benzicine . 01/01/87
92-33-3  4-NtroCIONEYl ..o 01/01/87
92-36-0 Benzoy! peroxide.............. ’ 01/01/87
96597  SRIONG. . L 01/01/87
:;:;:; 2.4-0 (Aceuc acw. (2 ‘-dlchloroomnoty) - g:;g:;:;
' 35+48-7 T e e i 01/01/87
g i°‘°"°'°°°"“"' --------- 0101787
! - o-Towrcine .
95-63-€ 1.2.4-Tnmethyibenzene........... 01/01/87
95-80-7 2.4-Diaminotoiuene ....... 01/01/87
95—995:; g.A.S-Tr-cnloronnonol .............. g:;g:::;
96-0 tyrene oxde................
96~12-8 1,2.Dioromo-3-cnioropropane (DBCP. 01/01/87
36-33-3 Methy! acrylate ) . \  01/01/87
996-47 56-5.; gmy,;on. trhoures g:;g: ;:;
- J' ....... !
. 98-07-7 Bonzo-: :nﬂéh‘r:l o 2 trichiofi ! 01/01/87
‘ 98-82-8 Cumane NGE (BONZOMICRIONTR) orneerrcemtre s . o1/01/87
i 8-87-3 - Benzal chionde | ouover
98884 | Benzoyl chionde i 01/01/87
98-95-3 | Nitrobenzane 01/01/87
§9-55-2 i 5-Nitrc-o-amsidine 01/01/87
95-65-0 ' m-Dinirobenzene 01/01/87
100~02-7 | a-Nitrophenol i 1/01/90
100-25~4 | p-Dinrobenzens | o1s01/87
100—41-4 | Ethylbenzene 1/01/90
100-42-5 | Styrene 01/01/87
100~44-7 | Benzy! cnioride 01/01/87
100-75~4 | A-Nittosopipendine 01/01/87
101-14-4 ' 4.4 -Methyienebis{2-chioroaniline) 01/01/87
i {MBOCA)
101-81-1 | 4.4-Metryieneb(N.Aomatny cenzenamne 01/01/87
101'673'3 ! :‘ :m::mmwm(pwm.m.m anate) (MBI 01/01/:7
101-80— | 4.4".Diamnodiphenyi sther 01/01/87
:gf-gi-g E Bl:‘Z-O!hyihoxyl) adipate g: ;g:;:;
~94-9 ! pmAnigucne
105-67-9 | 2.4-Dimethyipheno 01/01/87
10642-3 | p-Xylene 01/01/87
' 106—44-5 | p-Creso! 01/01/87
{ 106-46-7 | 1.4.Dicniorobenzene 01/01/87
I 106-50-3 , p-Phenytenediamme 01/01/87
! 106-51—4 | Quinone 01/01/87
106-85-7 ! 1,2-Butyens axide . 01/01/87
106-89-8 . EDICHIOIONYANA . ...ooeroe e 01/01/87
106-93—~+4 1.2.0bromoethane (Ethylene dibromidae).... g:;g:;:;
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g § 372.65 40 CFR Ch. | (7-1-92 Edition) |
o,
, CAS No. Chemical name : EMectve cate \
106-39-0 . 1,3-3utadiens 01/01/87
107-02-8 | Acrolen 01/01/87 :
107-05-1 ; Allyl chionde 01/01/87 {
107-06-2 | 1,2.Cichicroethane (Ethylene dichloride) 01/01/87
107-13-1 | Acrylonitrie 01/01/87
107-18-6 ' Allyi alcohol 1/01/90
107-21-1 | Etnylene giycol 01/01/87
107-30-2 | Chioromethyl methyl ether 01/01/87
108-05~4 | Vinyl acetate 01/01/87 .
108-10-1 | Methyi isobuty! ketone 01/01/87 .
108-31-8 | Malec anhydnde 01/01/87 )
108-38-3 ' m-Xylene 01/01/87
108-39-4 | m-Cresoi 01/01/87
108-80-1 | Bis(2-chicro-1-methylethyl)ether 01/01/87
108-38-3 | Toluene : 01/01/87
108-90-7 | Chiorobenzene 01/01/87
108-95-2 | Phenaol 01/01/87 !
109-86-4 | 2-Methoxyethanol 01/01/87
110-80-5 | 2-Ethoxyethanci 01/01/87
110-82-7 | Cyclohexane 01/01/87
110-86-1 | Pyndine 01/01/87
111-42-2 ' Diethanolamine 01/01/87
111-44-4 | Bis(2-chioroetnyl) ether 01/01/87
114-26-1 | Propoxwr (Phenoi, 2-(1-methylethoxy)-, methyicarbamate] 01/01/87
115=07-1 ; Propylene (Propene) 01/01/87
115-32-2 | Dicotol (Benzenemethanci, 4-chioro-.aipha.-(4-chlorophenyl)-.alpha.-{thchioromethyl)-] ......... 01/01/87
117-79-3 : 2-Amincanthraquinone 01/01/87
117-81-7 | Di(2-ethyinexyl) phthalate (DEHP) 01/01/87
117-84-0 | ~-Dioctyl phthaiate 01/01/87
118-74-1 | Hexachioropenzene 01/01/87
119-30-4 | 3.3"-Cimethoxybenzdine ........ 01/01/87
119-83-7 « 3.3'-Cima'hvibencine (o-Toliding) Q1/01/87
120-12-7 . Anthracene . 0Q1/01/87
120-58-1 ' iS0S2T0I@ ..cocvncerecnncerencenrenn s ! 1/61/90
120-71-8 ! p-Cresidine 01/01/87
120-30-9 ' Catechal . 01/01/87
120-82-1 ; 1.2.4-Tnchioronenzene . 01/01/87
©20-33-2 : 2.4-DicRICrODN@MOI .......oeiemimrmcrmeacnrccrraencrascceonne JER RPN i 01/01/87
121-14-2 ' 2 s4-Dintrotoiuene ... ... 01/01/87
121-69-7 AN A-Oimetnylamiine......... 01/01/87
122-86-7 1,2.Dwohenyinydranne (Hydrazodenzenae) 21:01/87
123-31-9 Hycroguinone............. ©1/C1/87

123-38-3 ' Propionaidenyde ............... e e 01701787

123-72-3 ' Butyraldenyde .... ' 01/01/87
123-91-1 : 1. 4-Dwoxane ......... e 01701787
124-73-2 : Oibromotetrafiuoroethane (Haion 2402) o 7/8/90
126-72-7 | Tns.2.3-cibromooropyl) phosphate L 01/01/87
126-99-8 | Chioroprene... 01/01/87
127-18-¢ | Tetrachioroetnylene (Perchiorcetnylene) 1 01/01/87
128-66-5 | C.I. Vat Yeilow 4 ! 01/01/87
131-11-3 | Dimethyi phthalate ' 01/01/87
132-64-9 | Dibenzofuran. | o1/01/87
133-06-2 | Captan {1H-Iscmdoie-1,3(2H)-diane,3a.4.7.7a-tetranydro-2- (tichioromethyi)thiol-1............... | o1/01/87
133-90-4 | Chiorampen (Benzoic acid, 3-armino-2,S-gichioro- 01/01/87
134-29-2 | o-Anisidine hydrochioride . 01/01/87
134-32-7 : a/oha-Naphthylamine 01/01/87
135-20~6 | Cupferron [Benzeneamine. N-hydroxy-N-nitroso, ammonium salt] 01/01/87
139-13-9 ! Nitnlotnacetc acid 01/01/87
139-65-1 ' 4.4'-Thiodianiline 01/01/87
140-88-5 | Ethyl acrytate .. 01/01/87
141-32-2 : Butyl acrylate 01/01/87
151-56—4 | Ethyleneimine (AZindine) 01/01/87
156-10-5 | p-Nitrosodiphenylarmne 01/01/87
156-62-7 | Caicium cyanamide 01/01/87
302-01-2 | Hydrazne......... 01/01/87
309-00-2 | Algnn(1,4:58-Dimethanonapnthatene,.1.2.3.4,10,10-hexachioro-1.4,4a2.5,.8,8a-hexahydro-

i (1.aipha.4.alpha.da.beta..S.aipha.. 8.2ipha..8abata)-] 01/01/87
334-88-3 : Diazomethane. 01/01/87
353-59-3 | Bromochicrodifluoromethane (Halon 1211) 7/8/90
463-58-1  Carbony! sulfide 01/01/87
492-80-8 ; C.I. Solvent Yallow 34 (Aunmine) 01/01/87
505-60-2 - Mustard gas [Ethane. 1.1 -thiobus[2-chioro-] . 01/01/87
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* CAS No. Chemical name ©  EHective cate
510-15-6 ' Chiorobenziate[Senezeneacetc ackl. 4-Chioro-.aipha.-(4-chicrophenyl)- alipha,-hydroxy-, ,
’ © ethyt ester] 01/0/87
528-29-0 | o-Dimtrobenzene 1/01/90
§32-27-4 2-Chicroacetophenane 01/01/87
§34-52-1 - 4 6-Dvutro-o~Cresol i 01/Q1/87
540-59-0 , 1.2-Dichicroethylene ( 01/01/87
) 541—41-3 | Ethyl cniorotormate ' 01/01/87
541-73-1 | 1.3-Dichicrobenzene 01/01/87
842-75-6 - 1.3-Dichioropropytene 01/01/87
542-88-1 ' Bisichioromethyl) ether 01/01/87
§65-64-2 < C.l. Basic Green 4 01/01/87
606-20-2 2.6-Dinitrotoivene ... 01/01,87
} §15-05-4 | 2.4-Diarmnoanisoie 01/01/87
621-64-7 ; A-Nitrosogi-/~gropylamine 01/01/87
624-83-9 ; Mathyl isocyanate 01/01/87
636-21-5 | o-Toluidine hydrochionde 01/01:87
| 680-31-9 ' Hexamethylphosphoramide 01/01/87
| §84-93-5 ' A:Nitroso-A-methyiurea 01/01/87
7§9-73-9 * A-Nitroso-A-ethyiurea 01/01/87
I 842-07-9 | C.l. Solvent Yeliow 14 01/01/87
924-16-3 ' A-Nitrosodi-n-butytamine 01/01/87
961-11-5 ; Tetrachlorvinphos [Phosphoric acid, 2<chioro-1+(2.4,S-inchiorophenyl)ethenyl dinethyl | !
! T @SIM] e s . 0%/01/87
) 982-38-8 . C.l BASIC BBU | ..ottt sbsbs e et s e et s i 01/01/87
1129-71-4 Propane suitone i 01/01/87
! 1163-19-5 . Decabromodipheny! oxide.. Q1/01/87

1313-27-5 ' Molybodenum tnoxide.... et eniestnaraea e ar e rrmneeeieeaen e H 01/01/87

1313-20-1 | Thonum dioxide ......... 4 01/01/87
131§-77-3 ~ Crasol (mixed 'somers) 01/01/87
133C-20-7 Xylene iMmixed 1somers) 01/0:/87
1332-2'-4  AsDestos (Inabi@) ......cecees coviiiineinnnen, 01/01/87
1335-87-1 mexachioronapninalene 01/01/87
1236-36-3 Polycmfornated nipnenyis (PCBS) .. 01/01/87
l 1344-28-1 ' Aiuminum omice (horous foems)... 01/01/87
1464.33-5 ODrepoxydutane .. 01/01/87
' 1582-09-8 Tnflurann (Senzenea ne, 2.6-Cintro-N.N-g pfoDVl-‘~(Wlu0fomelnyi) 1 01/01/87
1634042  Metnyi /rr-DUlyl @N@M .. oivmeceiieirrinricstreres e s enens 01/01/87
1836-75-5 - Nitroten "Senzene, 2.4-.gichioro-1-{4-nitrophenoxy)-] .. 01/01/87
1897 -45-6 ~ Chiorotnaionil {1-3-Benzenedicarbonitriie.2.4.5, 6-ulrachlcro-] 01/01/87
| 1937-37-7 .. Dwect 3tacx 38. 01/01/87
2164<17-2 Fluometuron [Urea, N. N-dtme!hyi-N -[3-(tntlucrometnyl)phenyi]-] .. 01/01/87
l 2234-13-1  Octachioronapninsiene © 01/01/87
2303-16-¢ Diaitate {Caroamotrowe acid, bis(1-methylethyl)-, S-(2, 3-¢-cmoro-2»o:oocnyl)uml ................. i 01/0v/87
2602-45-2 C.I. Dwect Blue 6. .y 01/01/87
2832-40-8 C.!. Disperse Yellow 3 ................ | 01/01/87
l 3118-37-5 . C.I. Soivent Orange 7.. . 01/01/87
3761-53-3 C.I. Food Red 5 eeeesiavearessacasarsasi e bt a e g e s ares st s ana kb LS b anaraesnansvenn s Resaes i 01/01/87
! 4549.40-0 ; A-Nitrosomathytvinytamine . ! 01/01/87
H 4680-78-8 ! C.l. Acid Green 3 01/01/87
6484-52-2 | Ammorium nitrate (solution) 01/01/87
7429-90-5 | Aluminum (fumc or dust) 01/01/87
7439-92-1 | Lead- 01/01/87
7439-36-5 | Manganese 01/01/87
7435-97-8 ; Mercury 01/01/87
! 7440-02-0 | Nickel. 01/01/87
7440-22-4 l Sitver ....... 01/01/87
7440-29-0 i Thatlium Q1/01/87
7440-36-0 ) Antmony 01/01/87
71440-38-2 | Arsenic 01/01/87
7440-39-3 ;| Barium 01/01/87
T7440-41-7 | Baryllium 01/01/87
7440-43-9 : Cadmiym. 01/01/87
7440-47-3 | Chromwum 01/01/87
i 7440-48-4 | Cobait 01/01/87
7440-50-8 | Copper 01/01/87
7440-82-2 | Vanadium (fume or dust)...... 01/01/87
7440-66-6 1 Zinc (flume or dus' 01/01/87
7550-45-0 | Titanrum tetrachionde 01/01/87
7647-01-0 | Hyarochionc acd 01/01/87
7664-38-2 0 Phosphonc acd .......... 01/01/87
7664-39-3 | Hydrogen fluoride ... 01/01/87
7664-41-7 | Ammona.... . 01/01/87
7664-93-9 | Sultunc acid........... ' 01/0v/87
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§ 372.65 40 CFR Ch. | (7-1-92 Edition)

CAS No. Cnemical name i Efective date
7€97-37-2 | Nitnc acid 01/01/87
7723-14-0 | Phosphorus (yellow or wihite) 01/01/87
7782-49-2 | Selenum 01/01/87
7782-50-5 | Chiorine. 01/01/87
7783-20-2 | Ammonmum sulfate (solution) 01/01/87
8001-35-2 Touphcnt 01/01/87
8001-58-9 1/01/90

10034-93-2 Hyamno suﬂm 01/01/87

10049-04-4 01/01/87

12122-67-7 Zmob (Carbamod!rcmc acid. 1.2-ethanediyibis-, Znc complex] 01/Q1/87

12427-38-2 | Maneb [Carbamodithicic acid, 1,2-ethanediyibis-, manganese comMPiex) .. cmrecveeeerer—d] 01701787

16071-86-8 | C.L Direct Brown 3§ 01/01/87

18543-55~-8 | AtNirosonomucoting 01/01/87

20816-12-0 | Osmiurn tetroxide 01/01/87

25321-14-8 | Dintrotoiuene

(mxed isomers) 1/01/90

25321-22-8 | Dichiorobenzene (mixed isomers) 01/01/87

25376-45-8 | Diaminotoluene (mixed isomers) 01/01/87

26471-62-5 | Tolenediisocyanate

{mixed isomaers) 1/01/80

39156-41-7 | 2.4-Diamincamsoie sulfate 01/01/87

(c) Chemical categories in alphabetical order.

Category name E';::l:_“

Antmony Compounds: Inciudes any unigue chemical substance that containg antmony as part of that
chemical's infrastructure Q1/01/87
Arsenic Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contans arsenc as part of that chemical's *

infrastructure 01/01/87
3anum Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contans banum as part of that chemical's

infrastucture 01/01/87
Serytium Compounds: includes any unique chemical substance that contans berylium as part of that

chemical's infrastructure. 01/01/87
Lacrmum Compounds: Includes ary unique cn,rmca: substance that contans cadmam as part of um'

cnermcal’s infrastructure... - rteetesertaseassentettrareasarasastnetras et e seeme s R aR e 4 e st eeamaneebtnen s orsmees 01/01/87
Chiorophenols. ) ‘ l 01/01/87

OH
Cly

H(S-—x)

Wherex=1to$
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Environmental Protection Agency § 372.65
Efective
Category name date.
Chromwum Compounds: Inciudes any unque chemical substance that containg chromium as part of that
chermcal's infrastructure. 01/01/87
Cobat Compounds: Inciudes any unique chemical substance that contams cobalt as part of that chemical's
infrastructure 01/01/87
Copper Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contains copper as part of that chemical's
infrastructure (except for C.i. Pigment Biue 15 (PB-15, CAS No. 147-14-8), C.l. Pigment Green 7 (PG-7, CAS
No. 1328-53-8). and C.l. Pigment Green 38 (PG-36, CAS No. 14302-13-7) 01/01/87
Cyamde Compounds: X~ CN™~ where X = H™ or any other group where a formal dissociation can be made. For
exampie KCN, or Ca(CN)e 01/01/87
Giycol Ethers: Includes mono- and d- thers of ethylene giycol, diethylene glycol, and triethylene glycol ...  01/01/87
R = (OCH,CH,)n"*
Where:
n=1,2 0r3
R=alkyl or aryt groups.
R=RA' H, or groups which, when removed, yield glycol ethers with the structure:
A = (OCHhcwla-on
Polymers are excluded trom this category.
Lead Compounds: Inciudes any umique chemical substance that contains lead as part of that chemical’s
infrastructure 01/01/87
Manganese Compounds: includes any uruque chemical substance that contans manganese as part of that
chemical's infrastructure 01/01/87
Mercury Compounds: Includes any uniQque chemical substance that contains mercury as part of that chemical's
infrastructure 01/01/87
Nicket Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contams nickel as part of that chemwcal's
infrastructure 01/01/87
Potydrominated Biphenyls (PBBS) ... e eneessesenaen s 01/01/87
Where x=1 to 10
Hect
Category name Ecﬁr.
Selermum Compounds: includes any unique chemical substance that contains selenium as part of that
chemical's infrastructure. 01/01/87
Siver Compounds: inciudes any uniQue chemical substance that containg silver a8s part of that chemical's
nfrastructure 01/01/87
Thalkum Compounds: inciudes any unique chemical substancs that containg thailium as pant of that chemical's
infrastructure 01/01/87
Tnc Compounds: Inciudes any unique chemical substance that contans zinc as part of that chemical's
nrastructure 01701/87

[53 FR 4525, Feb. 16, 1988; 53 FR 12748, Apr. 18, 1988, as amended at 53 FR 23112, June 20,
1988; 53 FR 39475, Oct. 8, 1988; 54 FR 12913, Mar. 29, 1989; 54 FR 25851, June 20, 1989; 54
FR 49952, Dec. 1, 1989; 54 FR 51300, Dec. 14, 1989. 55 FR 5222, Feb. 14, 1990; 55 FR 31597,
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